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THE COURT:  What else do we have left?  

MR. MACLEOD:  We’ve got a hearing, Your Honor. 

MR. GRIFFIN:  That’s correct, Your Honor.  I

have Ms. Tollison. 

THE COURT:  Oh.   

MR. GRIFFIN:  (Unintelligible).  It’s on a

violation of probation, Your Honor.

THE COURT:  State versus Deonna Tollison.   

MR. GRIFFIN:  Your Honor, I have three --

three witnesses to call -- to call on this morning.  

THE COURT:  All right.   

MR. GRIFFIN:  I mean, I (Unintelligible)-- 

THE COURT:  Is the Rule demanded?    

COURT CLERK:  Yes, sir.

THE COURT:  All right.  Those witnesses will

have to step outside the courtroom until called to

testify. 

(Unintelligible voices.).

THE COURT:  All right.  (Unintelligible) how

many witnesses do you have?   

MR. MACLEOD:  Just one, Your Honor.

THE COURT:  All right.  Call your first one.  

MR. MACLEOD:  Ms. Killabrew with CPS.

THE COURT:  Ms. Killabrew, if you’ll raise

your right hand.  Do you solemnly swear to tell the
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WHITE COUNTY GENERAL SESSIONS 5/16/17 Re: Tollison Transcribed by Laurie McClain 615-351-6293

truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth, so

help you God?

THE WITNESS:  Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT:  Thank you.  You may be seated.

BRITTANY KILLABREW,

having been duly sworn, testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. MACLEOD: 

Q. Will you please state your name for the

record.

A. Brittany Killabrew.

Q. Where are you employed?

A. Community Probation Services.

Q. And are you familiar with the probation

services of Ms. Tollison?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Is she in the courtroom?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Could you point her out for the Judge? 

Q. Thank you.  

Now, how did she come to be on probation with

you?

A. She was put on supervised probation on 

October 27th for a DUI and simple possession at the

White County General Sessions--
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Q. October 27th, ‘16?

A. 2015.

Q. 2015.  Okay.  Go ahead.

A. Yeah.  And she was also put on probation out

of Criminal Court, White County, on March 14, 2016, for

a theft under $500.

Q. Okay.  So Sessions Court October 27, 2015, she

was put on probation here.

A. Correct.

Q. Okay.  And were any violations taken?

A. Yes.  She had one prior violation, which was

for failure to pay court costs; failure to complete an

alcohol and safety education program; and new law

violations:  Driving on revoked license and criminal

impersonation.  

She did plead to the criminal impersonation

out of White County.  She received a probation for six

months, which is consecutive to the General Sessions

case.

Q. So she had one VOP; she had a violation.  And

what was the date on that violation?

A. That violation was taken out on January 17th

of 2017.

Q. January 17.  How did we get to -- how do we go

from October, 2015 to January 2017--
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A. It was--

Q. -- before the violation was taken?

A. It was consecutive to a Putnam County case,

so--

Q. So -- okay.  So she was on probation--

A. Uh-huh.

Q. -- in Putnam County.

A. Correct.

Q. And this was consecutive to that?

A. Yes.

Q. And then violation was taken out January 17th,

2017, for criminal impersonation?

A. Uh-huh.

Q. Did she receive any time on that first

violation to serve?

A. On February 28th of 2017, she appeared in the

White County Court.  She received 90 days house arrest. 

And the conditions were that that case would be

completed upon completion of house arrest.

Q. Okay.  Now, any more violations?

A. Just the violation we have today, her second

violation, which is just failure to comply with the

house arrest rules and regulations.

Q. And explain to me and explain to the Judge the

house arrest program.
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A. The house arrest, it -- it’s a monitored unit. 

We track her every movement.  I have access to the

software that receives the data.  I’m trained on how to

interpret that data.

Q. Who trained--

A. I monitor her.

Q. Who trained you on that?

A. Omnilink, the actual -- a representative from

Omnilink. 

Q. Okay.  Comes in and trains you on--

A. On how to navigate and interpret the data

received by the actual house arrest unit.

Q. And where is this information kept at?

A. It’s kept on the Focal Point Omnilink website. 

We have access to it 24/7.  We do monitor it daily and

receive the updates.

Q. Is this kept in the regular course of

business?

A. Yes, yes.

Q. Okay.  Could you put -- please explain to the

Judge her -- or the allegations against her for

violating this house arrest?

A. Yes.  Most important one is that her GPS unit

she allowed to die three times.  I did talk to her

several times about keeping it charged.  I made sure
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she understood how to charge it.  

I even had her bring her unit in, her charger

in.  I made sure it worked.  When I asked her to bring

that in, it came to light that she realized that the

actual charger was not plugged into the wall, which is

why it was not charging.  After that, I told her that

was her final warning.  And she allowed it to die, I

believe, twice after.  

And also she -- she was not in compliance with

her location.  She kind of took advantage of -- of --

going to the grocery-- 

MR. GRIFFIN:  Your Honor, I’m going to object

to hearsay at this time.  I ask that the information

received from the device itself, from a

(Unintelligible) my objection. 

MR. MACLEOD:  Judge, I believe that, for one,

it’s kept in the regular course of business, and this

would be a custodian of those records.  She’s testified

that the Omnilink individuals have come down, they’ve

given her classes on it.  And it’s kept at the office,

it’s monitored daily.  And also I believe reliable

hearsay is something that can be introduced to the

Court in a violation hearing.  

MR. GRIFFIN:  My argument would be, Your Honor

-- would just be that she has testified that this is
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through Omnilink, an independent contractor, the

information is kept on their server, but she may get

access to her from the office, but it’s kept by that

company.  These devices are created by a company,

they’re prepared by that company’s IT staff.  And

they’re the ones that put the information and manage

that software system.  

To me it’s analogous to like with the

toxicology reports we get back on drug tests.  You have

to have staff that are trained to be able properly

input that data.  And they would be the ones who’d have

to swear on affidavit or testify to the validity of the

results of that data.  And that’s my objection, and my

basis for my making it, Your Honor.   

MR. MACLEOD:  In the tox -- an example, a

toxicologist, that’s an expert -- an expert in

phlebotomy.  And--

 THE COURT:  Well, I know that--   

MR. MACLEOD:  -- (Unintelligible).

THE COURT:  -- in preliminary hearings those 

-- the report -- those kinds of reports are 

admissible–   

MR. GRIFFIN:  Yes, sir.

THE COURT:  -- (Unintelligible) that, and

specifically by statute.
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  MR. GRIFFIN:  Yes, sir.

THE COURT:  But -- but it -- as far as I know

there’s no rule that says that is true in a violation

of-- 

MR. GRIFFIN:  No, sir.  I think--

THE COURT:  -- of probation.   

MR. GRIFFIN:  -- that the -- the-- 

THE COURT:  But here’s the situation.   

MR. GRIFFIN:  Yes, sir?

THE COURT:  If that’s the case, then I’m not

placing anybody else on house arrest.  

MR. GRIFFIN:  That’s correct.  And it-- 

THE COURT:  And as a matter of fact everybody

that’s on house arrest is going to be revoked from it

and put back into custody because we’re not going that 

-- if -- if -- I’m just not going to do that.  

MR. GRIFFIN:  That’s right.

THE COURT:  I don’t want to go through that

trouble.  It’s paying those folks and costing the

County that kind of money.  I just a soon them be in

jail anyway.  

MR. GRIFFIN:  I understand, Your Honor.  But--

THE COURT:  So anyway.  Help -- so your – I

sustain your objection.  Everybody we got on house

arrest, bring them immediately to court, they’re going
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back to jail.  And they can thank Ms. Tollison for it. 

And -- and her house arrest is also over.  She’s back

in custody.  And we’re done.  Thank you.   

COURT CLERK:  Thank you, Your Honor.  

MS. DEONNA TOLLISON:  Could I (Unintelligible)

Your Honor?  

MR. GRIFFIN:  Your Honor, the -- if I -- if I

may, Your Honor, my client would like me to withdraw my

objection to hearsay (Unintelligible) from the

consideration of the Court.

THE COURT:  I didn’t like the program to begin

with.  I -- it -- to be honest with you, I anticipated

this problem, and sure enough it popped up.  And I

ain’t going to fool with it.

Get everybody on house arrest, bring them in.  

COURT CLERK:  Yes, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  They’ll have credit for the days

they’ve been on house arrest.  There won’t be any more

of it.

MS. DEONNA TOLLISON:  Judge?   

COURT CLERK:  Your Honor, would you like me to

call the docket and have them-- 

THE COURT:  Yes.  Next.  

COURT CLERK:  Yes, sir.  

MS. DEONNA TOLLISON:  Could I say something? 

Case 2:17-cv-00052   Document 13-3   Filed 10/09/17   Page 12 of 67 PageID #: 159



 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Page 13
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My case isn’t with Omnilink.  It -- it’s -- it -- it’s

not -- it’s not even -- please do not punish other

people for that.  It’s not even the Omnilink.  That’s

not it.  

I am -- I’m guilty of messing up, and -- and 

-- and not being in my (Unintelligible).  But there’s

other reasons.  And it’s not Omnilink.  It is not

Omnilink’s fault.  I promise you.  Please, do not -- do

not hurt other people because of -- please, don’t do

that.  Please.   

MR. GRIFFIN:  Your Honor, and -- and if I may,

just for -- for my -- my portion, Your Honor, I do

think that the -- the house arrest program is a good

program overall.  I think it gives a benefit to the

County and to a lot of the individuals here.

I think, in fairness to me, it was good legal

argument, but given the repercussions of that, I’ll

withdraw it and remember that in the future because I

think it is beneficial to the County, and that we have

overpopulation in the jail.  And individuals that can

fit on that system -- I think it does benefit everyone

involved.  And I will withdraw my objection to hearsay

at this point, Your Honor, if we could please just

continue with these proceedings.

THE COURT:  Okay.  But here’s the situation it
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puts the Court in, is that I have no -- I know it’s --

I have no faith in it anymore because every time it

comes to court it’s going to be challenged.  And the

County is going to have to go to the expense of

bringing these expert -- these folks from Omnivision

[sic] to -- to testify about what we all know is going

to be the result.

MR. GRIFFIN:  Well -- well, I recognize that,

Your Honor.  I personally won’t do that again.  It’s

the first time this issue has come up.  And I mean, I 

-- I would hope the Court recognizes that my hearsay

objection doesn’t have valid-- 

THE COURT:  But it does.  And I sustain-- 

MR. GRIFFIN:  -- (Unintelligible) in law. 

THE COURT:  -- I sustained it.  

MR. GRIFFIN:  Correct.

THE COURT:  I agreed.  

MR. GRIFFIN:  So that being said, given the

repercussions ultimately -- I mean, I’m here hired on a

second VOP, Your Honor.  I’m doing what I could for my

client, trying to make a good objection to some

evidence that had come in.

We’re willing to allow the objection to be

overruled, and allow that evidence to come in, and

continue forward with the hearing.  If we could just --
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please, Your Honor, my client and I will withdraw that. 

I did not see the ripple effects beyond that to other

cases beyond this one.  So I -- I -- you know, I--

THE COURT:  All right.  

MR. GRIFFIN:  -- recognize it’s got massive

benefit to the County, so...

THE COURT:  All right.  Rescind the... 

MR. GRIFFIN:  Thank you, Your Honor.  I

appreciate (Unintelligible).  

Q. (By Mr. Macleod)  Ms. Killabrew?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You were -- you were explaining the

allegations against Ms. Tollison as far as her

violations of the house arrest program.  Is she

instructed as to the places that she can go to and

frequent while on this program?

A. Yes.

Q. And what are those?

A. She is -- upon -- whenever we hook up the

house arrest unit, she -- it is explained that she can

go to church, work, probation and doctor’s visits.

Q. Okay.

A. And those are the only four places she can go. 

On her way to and from those four places she can stop

off for life essential needs such as groceries or
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gasoline.  She does need to obtain receipts if she does

do that, and report to me once a week, not miss any

appointments, or reschedule, and stay current with the

house arrest fees.

Ms. Tollison did miss two appointments.  She

did go to other places other than those four designated

locations.  And there were several warnings given.

Q. Can you explain to the Court where she went as

far as outside her range or scope of travel?

A. Yes.  Again, just a reminder, it’s on her way

two and from those four designated locations.  On 

March 16th she called and requested to go to Walgreens

to pick up prescriptions for her children.  I did grant

permission for that.  I told her to -- to obtain a

receipt.  

Then on 3/16 she requested permission to go to

the jail to retrieve her belongings and then go to

Progressive to pay her car insurance.  And I did grant

permission for her to do that.  

And then on March 20th there was a voicemail

on our answering machine in the office from the prior

day, March 19th, saying that she went to Kroger to get

groceries.  

And then on April 4th she called and reported

that her car wheel broke at the Cookout in Cookeville. 
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I’m not sure why she was at the Cookout in Cookeville.  

On the 6th of April she missed her

appointment.  She called and said she wasn’t able to

drive.

On the 7th of April I realized that her unit

was not tracking her properly, which sparked my -- you

know, my curiosity about it charging properly.  

On April 10th it was not tracking.  And I

called Ms. Tollison, told her to bring her charger in

so that I can check the unit.  

On April 11th she brought her charger in.  And

when she brought her charger in she said she realized

that her charger was not plugged into the wall, which

is why it was not charging.  I made sure she understood

how to plug it in and what to look for, make sure that,

you know, it was completely charged, which is just a

green light near the plug where you plug it in. 

I reminded her of the house arrest rules.  I

told her that she’s no longer allowed to do any

errands, that she was taking advantage of, you know,

the situations.  And I told her it was her only

warning.  

The next day her unit died again.  I called

her and I told her again, “No more warnings.”  On the

17th she called and said that her -- or her sister was
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hospitalized, I guess air-lifted to the Cookeville

Hospital, and she went with her sister there; and that

her father was sick and her mother was not able to take

care of him, and she went to the grocery store for her

parents.  And then--

Q. On what day?

A. It’s–

Q. On what day?

A. I’m sorry.  That was on April 17th.

Q. Okay?

A. And then on April 21st her unit died again. 

At that point, my decision to do the violation had been

made.

Q. Okay.  What was that last one, April 20th?

A. April 21st.

Q. 21st.  It died again?  

A. Yes.

Q. Okay.

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay.  And then any other reasons for the

violation?

A. No, sir.

Q. Okay.  Thank you.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. GRIFFIN: 
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Q. So there’s four places that they can go to

while they’re on house arrest.  Is that correct?

A. Yes.

Q. What are those four places?

A. Church, work, probation and doctor.

Q. Doctor visits?

A. Uh-huh.  Uh-huh.

Q. Are they allowed to stop off at like grocery

stores, gas stations, stuff like that on the way to and

from if they’re going to one of those four designated

locations?

A. Yes, life essential needs such as groceries

and gasoline.

Q. Okay.  So they can pick up essential needs in

that time?

A. Uh-huh.

Q. Why is it that they can’t pick up an essential

-- is there some other thing where they can call you to

go out and get necessities if they need to, get

permission beforehand, or is it just on those --

returning from those four routes?

A. It’s -- it’s typically only on those returning

four routes.  However, if they call, and they --

they’re not working and they don’t have church and they

don’t have a doctor’s visit but they need groceries,
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they need to call and get permission.  And we do

monitor and require receipts to be obtained.

Q. Okay.  All right.  So there is that where she

can call and get permission ahead of time.  Okay.

As to the medical situation, the sister that

was life-flighted to the hospital there at Saint

Thomas, were you made aware of that situation?

A. After it occurred.

Q. Okay.  How soon after it occurred?  

A. Let’s see here.  She notified me on 

April 17th.  I’m not sure what date I’m -- I’m assuming

it was the day prior, but I -- I cannot verify that.

Q. Okay.  But she did report that in to you. 

Correct?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay.  And she -- how’s her history of calling

in and letting you know about things overall in this

probation?

A. Fairly well.

Q. All right.  So she pretty regularly reports

into you and gives you calls?  

A. Other than missing her two appointments, she 

-- she was able to obtain contact via phone.

Q. Okay.  And she -- so she made that contact via

phone on those appointment days?  Is that correct?
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A. On the appointment days?

Q. Or -- well, were -- basically, did she call in

and reschedule them?  Or what happened?

A. She missed the appointments.

Q. Okay.  And then she called in at a later date

to reschedule?

A. Uh-huh.

Q. Okay.  And then she made those appointments at

that time?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay.  All right.  So -- and do you guys

regularly reschedule if they miss one appointment, if

they come in relatively soon thereafter?

A. On house arrest we’re very strict with

reporting.  We require them to report weekly, or they

can do biweekly if they’re paid ahead.  But typically,

no.

Q. Okay.  And how is her payment histories on

this case?

A. Payment on the house arrest fees, probably all

things she’s in compliance with.  She -- she did very

well with mailing -- maintaining her house arrest fees.

Q. Okay.  What about her court costs in this

case?  Are you familiar with that?

A. While on house arrest we focus on monitoring
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them.  Her court costs, she -- you don’t make any court

cost payments.  It was -- all her payments went towards

her house arrest, yes.

Q. Okay.  All right.  But she was making those

payments.  Okay.

Otherwise with meeting with her, has she been

difficult to -- with you to handle?  Ever give you a

hard time of any sort?

A. No.

Q. Always respectful?

A. Yes.

Q. And the -- the primary issue you’ve had is

with this unit -- with charging?  Is that correct?

A. Charging, missing appointments and falling out

of compliance as far as locations she’s been going to.

Q. All right.  And you testified those locations

-- one of those was a grocery store?

A. Uh-huh.

Q. Is that correct? 

What are the other locations?

A. The hospital, grocery store, Walgreens, jail,

the Cookout -- I believe that’s it.

Q. All right.  So we got a fast food chain, a

Walgreens, so a pharmacy–

A. Right.
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Q. -- a grocery store and--

A. Progressive car insurance.

Q. Progressive car insurance.

A. The jail.

Q. And the hospital and then the jail.

A. Uh-huh.

Q. Those are the places.  Okay.

And can you give me the date for each one of

them?

A. Yes.  For the Walgreens it was on April --

yeah, April 16th; for the jail, April 17th; Progressive

car insurance, April 17th; Kroger Grocery Store, April

20th -- I’m sorry, those were March; not April -- those

dates.

Q. Okay.  All right.

A. Let me repeat:  Walgreens, March 16th; jail

March 17th; car insurance, the Progressive car

insurance, March 17th; March 20th, Kroger Store; April

4th, Cookout; April 6th, missed the appointment -- that

not a location -- I apologize -- April 17th, hospital

and grocery store, and I guess her parents’ location.

Q. Okay.  

MR. GRIFFIN:  Your Honor, if I may have just a

brief moment to confer with my client. 

Q. (By Mr. Griffin)  In regards to the fines and
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the court costs, do you know if those had been paid in

full previously or not in this case?

A. No.  My -- my last note here shows that she

owed $656 for court costs--

Q. Okay.

A. -- on her General Sessions case.

Q. All right.  And you said there was two of

them--

A. Uh-huh, General sessions--

Q. -- right, currently? 

A. -- and Criminal Court.

Q. Okay.  Do you know if the -- are you

supervising her on both of those?

A. Yes.

Q. On -- on the other one, do you know if that’s

been paid?  Just looking into amenability

(Unintelligible) corrections to see where she’s at on

her -- on her costs.

A. Unfortunately, I don’t.

Q. Okay.  All right.  You’re not sure one way or

the other?

A. (No audible response.)

Q. Okay.   

MR. GRIFFIN:  That’s all the questions I have

of this witness, Your Honor.
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THE COURT:  Okay.  You may--  

All right.  Yes.  You may step down.  Thank

you. 

THE WITNESS:  Thank you.  

MR. GRIFFIN:  Your Honor, may I make an

inquiry with the clerk just as to the status of her

court costs?    

COURT CLERK:  220 is what she owes on this

(Unintelligible) case. 

MR. GRIFFIN:  Yeah.    

THE COURT:  $220?

COURT CLERK:  (Unintelligible).     

MR. GRIFFIN:  $220 is what she got left. 

Okay.  Thank you.   

COURT CLERK:  That’s for the fines and costs. 

MR. GRIFFIN:  Your Honor, at this point we

call Ms. Deonna Tollison to the stand.

THE COURT:  All right.  Ms. Tollison? 

If you’ll raise your right hand, please.  Do

you solemnly swear to tell the truth, the whole truth,

and nothing but the truth, so help you God?

THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.

THE COURT:  All right.  You may be seated. 

DEONNA ANNETTE TOLLISON,

having been duly sworn, testified as follows:

Case 2:17-cv-00052   Document 13-3   Filed 10/09/17   Page 25 of 67 PageID #: 172



 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Page 26

WHITE COUNTY GENERAL SESSIONS 5/16/17 Re: Tollison Transcribed by Laurie McClain 615-351-6293

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. GRIFFIN:  

Q. Please state your name for the record.

A. Deonna Annette Tollison.

Q. Ms. Tollison, you’ve been placed on house

arrest.  Is that correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you’ve heard the allegations that have

been made against you?

A. Yes.

Q. Is that correct? 

Can you tell me a little bit about these --

these trips and -- and why it is that you made them,

and understanding of why you could make them?

A. Yes, sir.  I was -- I was placed on house

arrest by the grace of the Court.  And I’m a single

mother of three -- three beautiful girls and a brand

new grandson.  And my mom is disabled.  And my sister

is disabled.  My sister passed away seven years; we

have her youngest daughter.  My little sister just had

a massive stroke, a brain aneurysm, so we have her

daughter.  

So I have a pretty large family.  And each and

every one of them depends on me because I’m the only

one with a vehicle, the only one with a license.  I
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love my family very dearly.  I was (Unintelligible) on

them for many years.  In the last four years I’ve done

everything in my power to get my life back, get my kids

back.

And the reason for the trips was because when

my grandson came off of formula and he had to have

milk, and I -- that wasn’t expected -- I thought my

little girl, my oldest daughter had like the

certificate, the 

-- the WIC vouchers and stuff, and she ran out.  

So there was times I had -- we eat -- they eat

a lot of food.  We eat a lot of food.  And I only had

to go to the grocery store -- I had to go to the

grocery store a lot.  There’s times I had to pick up my

niece.  There’s just -- there’s a lot of requirements

from the family, you know.  And -- and I’m glad to step

up and do for them because I didn’t for so long.  And

I’ll do anything for my family.

Q. Okay.  And in regards to the time that you

went to Progressive and the jail that’s

(Unintelligible) for what, exactly?

A. The fines that I paid?  Looks like--

Q. I don’t know, you made a trip up here to the

jail--

A. Oh.  
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Q. -- that was talked about.

A. I -- I was -- I’d -- I -- I got violated on --

yes -- I got violated -- my first violation was for

failure to pay court costs.  I didn’t get assessment. 

During the process I got the driving revoked.  

Well, in the amount of time I got -- up here

in December and I paid off all my fines.  I paid off --

I got my license so the driving on revoked was

dismissed.  And like a goofball one night, four days

before Christmas, I got that criminal impersonation. 

And I re -- was -- was -- was going back to my old way

of thinking.  I’m sorry.

 Q. Okay.  And you -- you pled to that charge, and

that’s all been dealt with.  So what you’re saying is,

is in regards to going off the house arrest you did

those because you needed to take care of your family. 

Is that correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. All right.  In regards to the charger

situation, can you tell me a little bit about what was

going on with that?

A. Yes, sir.  I -- I would laying down at night

to -- to sleep, and that’s when I would charge it.  And

I’d notice that when -- sometimes when I’d wake up that 

I would kick it loose and it would become unplugged.  
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When it was staying completely charged and I 

-- that wasn’t an issue, I -- I realized that it was

better for me to take the cord and wrap it inside the

ankle bracelet and tie it off twice in a knot and then

plug it up, that way I couldn’t un -- un -- kick it

loose.  

But then there was times that -- I mean, I was

not trying to be out -- out of compliance.  But when my

sister went in -- into Erlanger, I realized 

Ms. Killabrew -- she had called me and let me know,

that, you know -- and I even let her know that, you

know, I (Unintelligible) and I -- where I felt like I

was kind of taking -- I felt like she -- you know, I

needed to let her know that, you know, I thought she

thought I was taking advantage of it.  

And -- but I -- and I appreciate -- she was --

she did come and warn me, you know, and she did try to

help me there.

Q. Okay.

A. And I tried to -- I just realized that one

night, I -- that she asked me bring my unit in.  And I

went -- when I went to undo everything to bring it in I

went behind my desk and I went to unplug it and I

realized it wasn’t plugged up.  

I only have two plug-ins in my bedroom, and I
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share it with all my kids, you know, so...  I just get

really caught up, you know.  And I--

Q. Right.

A. I mean, I really wish--

Q. How many children do you have, total, in the

home?

A. Three, four, five -- six.

Q. Six.  Okay.  And as far as the conditions of

house arrest, and all that stuff, if you were to get a

second chance here today, would you be willing to

follow all those terms and to keep that charger plugged

up and to-- 

A. My God, I will not mess it up, not for the

world.

Q. All right.

A. And if -- put me under here, if I do -- if he

would -- if the Judge grant -- grants me -- I mean, has

mercy on me today.

Q. And you understand what those terms and

conditions would be, is that correct?  And you’d be

willing to abide by them?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. All right.

Is there anything else you’d like to add in

your defense at this time?
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A. No, sir.

Q. All right.

And my last question will be:  Well, your

sister, she was there -- went to the Erlanger, is that

correct?

A. She-- 

Q. Or St. Thomas in Nashville?

A. She was -- St. Thomas, yeah.

Q. Okay.

A. And the reason I had to go there is because

they called us -- and I -- I had an appointment with

her that day.  I -- I remember I had an appointment

with her that day.  And my dad was at home.  And he was

like -- but they called and let us know that my little

sister woke up and started pulling her ventilators and

her tubes out and stuff.  

I done lost a sister six years ago.  And my

little sister died in my arms in the car -- carport. 

And I was about to lose her.  So when they called and

said she’s pulling her ventilator and her tubes out,

they need family members up there immediately -- and

there’s only me and my dad.  Me and my dad run our

butts off for our family.  I mean, we really do.  

And Daddy does not -- you’ll -- he’ll -- he’ll

say -- he’s a gentle man -- man, and he’s just not real
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good with technology at all.  And I had a GPS, he still

didn’t know how to work it.  So I put it in his truck

and they -- they -- they had to have us, and I just

went.

Q. The GPS to get down Nashville to follow

directions, correct?  

A. Yes, sir.  Yes, sir.

Q. All right.

Anything else?

A. No, sir.  

MR. GRIFFIN:  Thank you, Your Honor.  That’s

all I have of this witness.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. MACLEOD:  

Q. Ms. Tollison, do you agree that you were on

probation before -- in Putnam County before you picked

up your DUI here in White to go on--

A. Yes.

Q. -- probation, then?  Is that correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And this -- after that you violated -- you’d

picked up a driving on revoked.  Is that correct?

A. Here?

Q. Yes.  That’s correct?

A. Yes, sir.
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Q. Yes.  And that was dismissed.  Is that what

you said?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. But you pled to a criminal impersonation.  Is

that correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And that was in January of 2017?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Okay.  And then you were violated, and you’re

given the opportunity to go on house arrest for 90

days.  Is that correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Okay.  So during that you asked to go to a

number of places -- auto and the jail -- Progressive

Auto and jail.  Is that right?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You were given permission to do that.  But

then you went to Kroger on 3/20.  Is that correct?

A. Yes.

Q. No -- no permission to do that, right?

A. There was no phone number to get a hold of

her.

Q. Okay.  But you got a hold of her before to get

the permission, didn’t you?

A. Well, that was in the middle of the-- 
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Q. Didn’t you? 

Q. -- it was early in the day. 

Q. Hold on.  Is it true that you’d gotten a hold

of her before?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay.  So-- and then it looks like 4/4 you

went to the Cookout in Cookeville.  Is that correct?

A. Yes.

Q. No permission to do that, was there?

A. No, sir.

Q. Okay.  And that’s not a grocery store where

you feed the kids and stuff, is it?

A. I was on my way to the grocery store.

Q. But that’s a -- but you stopped at the

Cookout, is that right?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay.

Then you missed an appointment.  Is that

correct?

A. I--

Q. On 4/6 you missed an appointment, didn’t you?

A. I missed it, but I called--

Q. Okay.

A. -- and rescheduled.

Q. All right.  But you missed it on another
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occasion, too, didn’t you?

A. That was when I had to go to St. Thomas.

Q. Okay.  And when you went to St. Thomas it

looks like you went to the hospital, St. Thomas, to

visit your--

A. Sister.

Q. -- sister.

And then you went to the grocery store after

that?

A. Yes, we -- me and my dad came back, yeah.

Q. Okay.  And then went to the grocery store.

On multiple occasions your unit died, it

seems.  Is that correct?

A. Two or three times.

Q. Two or three times it died.  And it’s true

that Ms. Killabrew has your phone number.  Isn’t that

right?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Okay.  And what -- is that phone number 4 --

400-2222?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. That’s a cell phone, isn’t it?

A. No, sir.

Q. That’s a land line?

A. That’s a land line.
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Q. From where?

A. Through Direct TV.

Q. Through Direct TV?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay.  Do you have a cell phone?

A. Yes.

Q. You do have a cell phone?

A. Oh, well, my mom’s got a cell phone.

Q. Your mom’s got a cell phone.  Okay.  How many

times did your mom’s cell phone die while you were

charger on your angle bracelet was dying?

A. It dies periodically.

Q. Okay.  All right.

And you don’t work anywhere, do you?

A. I was -- I was--

Q. It’s true you don’t work anywhere, do you?

A. Okay.  Yes.

Q. You haven’t given the -- a work history to 

Ms. Killabrew, have you?

A. I let her know that I was -- I was cleaning

out a dog kennel.  I was trying to make some extra

money on the side.

Q. Okay.

A. And it was on the way to my house.

Q. Okay.
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A. And he was helping me with that, so I could

pay my -- my dues to her every week, which I did. 

Q. Okay.  And you still owe $220 in court costs. 

Is that right?

A. If you -- I’m sure.  Yes.

Q. Okay.  All right.

A. Thank you, sir.  

MR. MACLEOD:  No further. 

THE COURT:  Anything else of this witness?  

MR. GRIFFIN:  Just a quick (Unintelligible). 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. GRIFFIN: 

Q. So when -- you went to the Cookout and you

were coming back from the grocery store.  Is that

correct?  

A. I was on my way there and my little girls -- I

got, 3, 6 and a 17 year-old.  And when -- when your

little girls are hollering for french fries and you

pass by somewhere -- I pulled in and got french fries.

Q. Stopped at the Cookout for the kids?

A. Yes.

Q. Is that right?  Okay.

MR. GRIFFIN:  No further questions, Your

Honor.  Thank you.

THE COURT:  On your -- that unit you’re
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supposed to keep charged up?

THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.

THE COURT:  When you plug it in does -- does

it -- if it’s got a dead battery, does it show red, and

then when it’s charged it shows green or--

THE WITNESS:  Green.

THE COURT:  -- something like that?

THE WITNESS:  Green, yes.  And it’s got a

backup battery.

THE COURT:  Okay.  So you ought to be able to

look at it and know if it’s charging or not, right?

THE WITNESS:  Yeah, yeah.

THE COURT:  Okay.

THE WITNESS:  It was -- it was in the red

mostly.  Mostly it was in red.

THE COURT:  But I mean, if--

THE WITNESS:  It’s–

THE COURT:  -- it wasn’t even plugged up it

wouldn’t have any light, would it?

THE WITNESS:  That was for two days it 

wasn’t–

THE COURT:  Okay.  

THE WITNESS:  -- plugged up that was around

the time--

THE COURT:  I asked-- 
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THE WITNESS:  I’m sorry.

THE COURT:  The question was:  It would have

no lights on if it wasn’t plugged up, would it?

THE WITNESS:  Well, yes.

THE COURT:  When you put it on the charger it

wouldn’t light up at all if it wasn’t–

THE WITNESS:  It would take -- it was -- it’d

take about 15 seconds for it to light up red.  And --

and I probably (Unintelligible) laying down and just

tired, and plugged it in and expected it to come on. 

But I -- I promise you, I wasn’t doing it on purpose. 

I mean, I just have a lot going on.  I’m sorry.

THE COURT:  Any cross-examination of the

Court’s questions? 

MR. MACLEOD:  No, Your Honor.   

MR. GRIFFIN:  No, Your Honor.

THE COURT:  All right.  You may step down.  

THE WITNESS:  Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT:  Call your next.  

MR. GRIFFIN:  I call Alanna Tollison, Your

Honor.  

UNIDENTIFIED MAN:  Alanna Tollison.  

(Unintelligible voices.) 

THE COURT:  Ms. Tollison, come up here and

have a seat, please.  And if you’ll raise your right
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hand.  Do you solemnly swear to tell the truth, the

whole truth, and nothing but the truth, so help you

God?

THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.

THE COURT:  All right.  Thank you.  You may be

seated.

ALANNA TOLLISON,

having been duly sworn, testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. GRIFFIN: 

Q. Would you please state your name for the

record? 

A. Alanna Tollison.

Q. And how is it that you know -- know Ms. Deonna

Tollison?

A. She’s my mom.

Q. All right.  And you’re familiar that she was

on house arrest.  Is that correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you are in -- living in the house with

her.  Is that correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Can you explain to me a little bit about what

all Ms. Tollison does to help you?

A. Well, I have two little sisters, too.  And she
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takes care of them.  She goes to the grocery store

because she’s the only one with a driver’s license.  My

Grandma, she has COPD.  She had various other health

conditions, so she’s not able to get up and clean

houses, you know, for long periods of times and things

like that.  

And she helps out a lot because no one else is

able to drive back and forth to town to go get those

things that we need.  And we’ve actually been

struggling.  It’s just me and my grandma right now.  My

aunt just got out of the hospital.  You know, she had a

stroke, and she’s practically paralyzed on her right

side.  She’s using it a little bit more.  

But it’s just me and my grandma taking care of

-- I have two little cousins there that are 10 and 11,

two little sisters and I also have a son.  So it’s just

me and her cleaning and cooking and helping.  And my --

my aunt really can’t do anything.  She’s honestly

needed a lot at home right now.

Q. All right.  So it’s fair to say that 

Ms. Tollison helps you a lot with your basic care and

needs.  Is that correct?

A. Yes.  She helps out with bills and things like

that, so...

Q. All right.  And did you go with Ms. Tollison
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down to see your aunt when she was at -- at St. Thomas

Hospital in Nashville?

A. I didn’t go.  My little cousin went.

Q. Okay.

A. Yeah, I had to stay home with the kids,

because there’s like -- like I said, my little cousins

and my two little sisters and things like that.  She

went with my grandpa.

Q. Okay.  

MR. GRIFFIN:  No further questions, Your

Honor, of this witness.

THE COURT:  How old are you?

THE WITNESS:  I’m 17.

THE COURT:  Why don’t you get a driver’s

license?

THE WITNESS:  I can get them, I guess, it’s

just you have to have insurance on a car.  I’m not sure

if her car has insurance.  Because they won’t let you

go up there and take a driving test without insurance

on a car.

THE COURT:  What?

THE WITNESS:  I guess just in case something

happens.  I -- I’ve asked. 

UNIDENTIFIED WOMAN:  That’s true. 

THE COURT:  What if you don’t own a car, you

Case 2:17-cv-00052   Document 13-3   Filed 10/09/17   Page 42 of 67 PageID #: 189



 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Page 43

WHITE COUNTY GENERAL SESSIONS 5/16/17 Re: Tollison Transcribed by Laurie McClain 615-351-6293

can’t get a driver’s license?

UNIDENTIFIED WOMAN:  I had an individual who

is 70 years old here, Your Honor, and she couldn’t --

and had to borrow someone -- had to take them with

them.  She’d never had a driver’s license and -- and

show that they had-- 

THE COURT:  Well, I guess you’ve got to have a

car that-- 

UNIDENTIFIED WOMAN:  -- (Unintelligible)

insurance. 

THE COURT:  -- when you go and take the

drivers test that has insurance on it, right?  

UNIDENTIFIED WOMAN:  That has insurance, yes.  

THE COURT:  Okay.   

UNIDENTIFIED WOMAN:  Yes. 

THE COURT:  All right.  You may step down.  

THE WITNESS:  Okay.  Thank you. 

THE COURT:  So are you telling me that your

mom’s driving that car around with no insurance?

THE WITNESS:  I’m -- I’m not sure if it has

insurance on it. 

MS. DEONNA TOLLISON:  It has insurance through

Progressive but (Unintelligible) difficulty

(Unintelligible). 

MR. GRIFFIN:  All I know is we had testimony
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earlier about Progressive Auto Insurance, Your Honor. 

Your Honor, if I may also call Rick Tollison

to the stand, please. 

THE COURT:  Come on up here and have a seat,

Mr. Tollison.

All right.  Raise your right hand, sir.  Do

you solemnly swear to tell the truth, the whole truth

and nothing but the truth, so help you God?

THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.

THE COURT:  All right.  Thank you.  Have a

seat.  

RICK TOLLISON,

having been duly sworn, testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. GRIFFIN: 

Q. Please state your name for the record.

A. Rick Tollison.

Q. How do you know Mr. Deonna Tollison?

A. Ma’am -- sir? 

Q. How do you know Ms. Deonna--

A. Oh.

Q. -- Tollison?

A. That’s my daughter. 

Q. And there was an event where your other

daughter was sick a while -- a while back.  Is that
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correct?

A. Yeah.

Q. And tell me a little bit about that situation.

A. She had a stroke.

Q. Okay.  And that was on 4/15, is that correct,

of this year?

A. I -- I -- well, I think so.  Let me -- I’d

have to read the number.  I just know she had a stroke

and she stayed there and we went to, you know, see her. 

Q. Okay.  And Ms. Tollison went with you to see

her? 

A. Yeah.

Q. And she was life-flighted down to Nashville,

is that correct?

A. Yes, sir, yes.

Q. A pretty serious illness?

A. Ill -- about died, you know, about lost

another one.

Q. All right.  And in regards to your household,

there’s several children living there.  Is that

correct?

A. Yeah, about nine, ten, yeah.

Q. Okay.  Sure it’s not more about like six?

A. Kids?  Kids, yeah.

Q. Yeah. 
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A. The kids, now, since she got the kids, yeah.

Q. Okay.  All right.  Ms. Tollison takes care of

those kids.  Is that correct?

A. She helps -- yeah, she -- they help -- yeah. 

And she -- yeah -- they couldn’t hardly doing nothing

with -- I mean, she’s the only one that’s got a license

there.  And she just barely got them back last time.

Q. All right.  Is she a big help to you all

around the house and getting groceries, and whatnot?

A. And she’s all -- she’s all they got to get

groceries, yeah.

Q. Okay.

A. Only -- she’s the only one that can drive.

Q. Do you live with them, or do they live

separate from you?

A. I -- I live -- I take care of my mom.

Q. Okay.  

A. I’m my mom’s care giver.

Q. Okay.  All right.

Anything else you’d like to add about this

case?

A. Well, I want -- I wish she can get out because

of her kids -- she’s got three beautiful kids, and she 

-- she needs to be a mom instead of the shit she’s in

now.  I mean, you know, I -- she -- she needs to be
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home.  I’m here to help her; I’m -- I’m her Daddy.  I

love her.  And well, hell (Unintelligible) I’m just

trying to be a Daddy.

Q. All right.  So what -- basically what you’re

saying is she needs to be out and helping and

straightening up.  Is that correct?

A. Well, yeah.  I mean, her-- 

Q. Okay.

A. -- (Unintelligible) I mean, them kids every

day (Unintelligible) “Papa, where’s Mama” -- you know.

Q. And see her help the children, that’s what you

like to see?  Is that correct?  And that would be a big

benefit you all’s family?

A. Yes, it would.

Q. All right.  No further questions, Your Honor.

THE COURT:  Any questions?  

MR. MACLEOD:  No.

THE COURT:  All right.  You may step down. 

Thank you.   

UNIDENTIFIED MAN:  (Unintelligible). 

THE COURT:  (Unintelligible).  

MR. GRIFFIN:  Your Honor, if I may, 

Ms. Tollison would -- well, we’ve heard testimony here

today about these (Unintelligible) monitoring.  It’s

not something where anybody in the community has been
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injured.  There’s some issues here with the charger.

We’ve heard Ms. Tollison she would abide by

that, given the chance, that there’s several children

that she looks after and helps takes care of.  By and

large mostly stops for -- one was the hospital visit,

the other ones were necessity, it seemed like, grocery

store, car insurance, other little things.  

And while I -- I would agree that she probably

should be calling in and -- and following that, it’s

not something where we have anybody placed in harm.  I

think she understands what she’s done was -- was -- was

wrong, and she’s willing to come forward and to comply

by any rules of the Court going forward.

Given the -- the nature of the family and the

needs for these children to have a caretaker -- or have

somebody help them out, help out her daughter with her

child and everything, Your Honor, we throw ourselves on

the mercy of the Court, and would ask that my client

be, if found in violation, be given some alternative

form of sentencing, perhaps continuing house arrest or

additional house arrest, or something less than the

full sentence to serve, Your Honor.  Thank you.  

MR. MACLEOD:  Judge, I believe when the Court

allows someone to go on house arrest they are held to a

higher standard for a reason.  That higher standard
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testified by Ms. Killabrew is weekly meetings and

things of that nature, and so they didn’t go to jail in

the first place.

Ms. Tollison has shown no -- no amenability to

rehabilitation as far as that’s concerned.  She was on

probation in Putnam County before she picked up the DUI

here.  She gets a DUI.  White County picks up a drive

on revoked.  It wasn’t dismissed and then she has a

criminal impersonation right after that that she pleads

to.

She’s allowed to have 90 days of house arrest,

but during that time, multiple occasions she is warned

by Ms. Killabrew.  And through her testimony alone, she

says she was warned.  She goes to Kroger, she goes to

the Cookout.  She goes to the hospital.  After the

hospital she goes to the grocery store.  She missed

multiple appointments.  

And then she couldn’t keep her -- her ankle

monitor charged.  It seems like a pretty simplistic

thing to do.  Through her testimony she says that a

light comes on, and it’s red, it blinks and then it’s

green when it’s good.  And she was so worried about

this that she failed to check.  You know, we just don’t

see that to be a viable excuse, Your Honor.

She doesn’t work, and she’s needed by family
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so much, you figure that there’d be a job or something.

THE COURT:  How did -- that’s a -- that’s a

question I’ve got.  I don’t remember ever agreeing to

house arrest absent employment.  That’s almost --

that’s about the only reason I’d consider it is-- 

MS. TOLLISON:  I did have-- 

THE COURT:  -- to save people their

employment, their jobs. 

MR. GRIFFIN:  Yes, sir.

THE COURT:  How is it that-- 

MR. GRIFFIN:  I didn’t represent her

previously, Your Honor.  I’m not sure, to be honest

with you.

THE COURT:  It’s just odd that I would grant

that without -- her not having a job at the  -- the

time.  

MS. TOLLISON:  Well, I had a job at the time. 

I was -- I was helping my dad’s friend (Unintelligible)

concrete.  But then it was just seasonal, and I’m a

female, so he only keeps me when he could.  So that’s

why I was cleaning these dog kennels after that.  And

it was like a mile away from my house (Unintelligible)

clean them.  And then and I -- I’m just really good

with animals, so I mean, that’s -- that’s what I was

doing, and was -- been doing prior to being arrested. 
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THE COURT:  (Unintelligible) go ahead. 

MR. MACLEOD:  Never reported that to her

probation officer.  So with all that combined, Your

Honor, we don’t believe that Ms. Tollison is amenable

to any type of probation.  And we think she should be

revoked to serve to finish the balance of her sentence.

THE COURT:  Well, I don’t mind telling you,

this (Unintelligible) is making me rethink house arrest

altogether, that there was as much freedom as there is. 

I -- I -- my expectation was they’re -- they’re allowed

house arrest generally to keep -- to keep a job, not to

make the various and the sundry responsibilities that

are -- are incumbent upon person in a family and

things.  Because otherwise, when they’re in jail,

they certainly can’t do those things.  This is -- the

reason -- they -- you know, those -- to be honest with

you, the only reason I go along with that is because

employment to me is the one thing that will come closer

to keeping these folks out of trouble and out of jail

than anything else.  

And you know, a lot -- and that’s generally

why I go along with it:  Well, he’s got a job, she’s

got a job, and they’re going to lose it if they -- if

they go to jail.  And that’s all -- well, okay.  

Case 2:17-cv-00052   Document 13-3   Filed 10/09/17   Page 51 of 67 PageID #: 198



 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Page 52

WHITE COUNTY GENERAL SESSIONS 5/16/17 Re: Tollison Transcribed by Laurie McClain 615-351-6293

But I -- but the way I’ve had it -- of course,

I guess this is my mistake.  The way I had it in my

mind is you go to work.  That’s it.  And you ought to

feel lucky you got that.  

I didn’t know they was calling up and going to

the grocery stores and here and there and well, this or

that.  And if I’d have known that I probably never

would have agreed to it to begin with it.

But then on top of that, and -- and it seems

to me, Ms. Tollison, they were very lenient with you

for a long time.  Excuse -- some of these things I

never would have agreed to if they’d called me and

asked me.  Then you miss appointments.  

MS. DEONNA TOLLISON:  I was--

THE COURT:  But you’re somewhere where you’re

not supposed to be, but you’re not where you’re

supposed to be.  

It -- you were counseled about keeping this

thing charged.  And I -- I just don’t understand how

something so important to your liberty becomes

something you can be too tired to notice, or too busy

doing something else, when this is the one thing

keeping you out of confinement.  I’m -- I don’t -- I

can’t wrap my mind around there and get to that.  

And I can’t (Unintelligible) I can’t trust you
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to do it in the future, you can’t -- you ain’t done in

the past.  Everything was riding on it, and that was --

still wasn’t enough.  

MS. DEONNA TOLLISON:  I’m sorry.

THE COURT:  You -- you have violated the terms

of your house arrest, the Court so finds, and violated

the terms of your probation by doing so.  

This is the second violation.  And I’m not

unsympathetic to some of the circumstances that you’re

faced with.  But -- and -- and the way I treat other

folks and being fair -- trying to be fair across the

board, second violation gets a -- gets a revoke to

serve. 

Now, there are  a lot of things you can do in

jail to start earning an early release.  You haven’t

had one of those, and you’ll still be eligible for

that.  Unless you just get in there and lay down and

quit on life and everything else, then you’ll be there

for 

11 months, 29 days.  But if you get in there, go to

these classes and do the things you need.  You need to

go to an A & D class for sure.  

MS. DEONNA TOLLISON:  I’m not on drugs. 

THE COURT:  Well, you’ve got a-- 

UNIDENTIFIED WOMAN:  I’ve (Unintelligible)-- 
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THE COURT:  You were originally on DUI, and

that’s either alcohol or drugs.  Simple possession

Schedule VI is--

MS. DEONNA TOLLISON:  That was my– 

THE COURT:  -- a drug.  Simple possession

Schedule II is a drug.  

MS. DEONNA TOLLISON:  I’ve passed– 

THE COURT:  If I was in jail for it, I’d

figure I have a problem with it.  

MS. DEONNA TOLLISON:  Well, I’ve quit

everything.  And I’ve passed all my drug screens.  I

quit everything. 

THE COURT:  Well, I’ve -- you can argue with

me--

MS. DEONNA TOLLISON:  (Unintelligible).

THE COURT:  -- if you want.  If you want an

early release--

MS. DEONNA TOLLISON:  Okay.

THE COURT:  -- you’ll do what I say.  I don’t

-- I mean, that’s kind of been your problem:  “Well, I

know I wasn’t supposed to go do this, but I needed to. 

Well, I know you told me I need to do this, but I don’t

need to” -- well, then don’t.  I’m trying to help you. 

If you don’t want it, that’s fine.  

MS. DEONNA TOLLISON:  I do.
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THE COURT:  You do have credit, though, on

your jail -- every day you’re on house arrest -- that

you were on house arrest, you had -- those are days

credited to your jail sentence.  So you have those

credits.  So but otherwise your probation is revoked. 

You’ll be required to serve the balance as sentenced in

the White County Jail.   

COURT CLERK:  Your Honor, may I clarify, would

you like me to still bring in my house arrest caseload,

back into Court?  

THE COURT:  No, no.  I rescinded that on--  

COURT CLERK:  Okay.

THE COURT:  And -- but -- well, if that ever

happens that’s -- that’s what’s going to happen.   

COURT CLERK:  Yes, Your Honor.  

MR. GRIFFIN:  Won’t be coming from my office,

Your Honor.  I recognize the issue.

THE COURT:  We’re not going to play that game.

(End of hearing.) 

* * * * * *
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STATE OF TENNESSEE )
)

COUNTY OF DAVIDSON )

I, Laurie McClain, Transcriber,

DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing

proceedings were transcribed by me from a digital file,

and the foregoing proceedings constitute a true and

correct transcript of said recording, to the best of my

ability.

I FURTHER CERTIFY I am not a relative or

employee or attorney or counsel of any of the parties

hereto, nor a relative or employee of such attorney or

counsel, nor do I have any interest in the outcome or

events of this action.

Date 10/7/2017 _____________________
Laurie McClain
Transcriber
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